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Hota Industrial Mfg. Co., Ltd. 

2023 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting - Minutes 

Time: 09:30am, Wednesday, June 13, 2023 

Venue: No. 12, Keya Rd., Daya Dist., Taichung City 428203, Taiwan (R.O.C.) 

Number of shares present: Total shares represented by shareholders and proxy present 193,053,455 

shares, which is 69.06% of the company’s total outstanding shares, 279,517,513 shares. 

 

Directors present: Sheng, Kuo-Jung, Lin, Yen-Huey, Huang, Feng-Yih, Lin, Mei-Yu, Kao Fong 

Machinery Co., Ltd. (Representative: Sheng, Chien-Chih), Hao-Qing Investment 

Co., Ltd. (Representative: Sun, Yong-Lu), Zhong-Bu Investment Co., Ltd. 

(Representative: Lin, Yue-Hong), Cheng, Wen-Zheng (Independent Director), 

Liu, Zheng-Huai (Independent Director), Que, Ming-Fu (Independent Director) 

Attendees: Hsu, Chung & Partners (lawyer Ciou, Fang-Yi)、PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan (CPA 

Wu, Sung-Yun) 

Chairman: Sheng, Kuo-Jung                           Minutes taker: Chen, Chang-Yuan 

 

I、 Meeting called to order: The aggregate shareholding of the shareholders present in person or 

by proxy constituted a quorum. The Chairman called the meeting to order. 

II、 Chairman’s Address: (Omitted) 

III、 Reports items: 

(i)、 Operation Report of the Year 2022, please refer to Appendix 1.  

(ii)、 Review Report for the financial final accounts of the Year 2022 by the Audit 

Committee, please refer to Appendix 2. 

(iii)、 The Company’s 2022 Employees’ Compensation and Directors’ Compensation are 

distribution as follows: 

(1) 2.14% as the remuneration to employees, namely NT$16,800,000. 

(2) 0.57% as the remuneration to directors, namely NT$4,500,000. 

(3) All the above will be paid in cash. 

(iv)、 Report on fund loan and endorsement guarantee. 
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IV、 Matters for Ratification 

Proposal 1                                     (Proposed by the board of directors) 

Proceedings: Ratification for the financial final accounts of the Year 2022. 

Explanation: The Company’s consolidated financial statements, individual financial 

statements, and business reports of the Year 2022 have been prepared, approved by 

the Company’s board of directors, and completely verified by accountants Wu 

Songyuan and Xu Jianye of PwC Taiwan, reviewed by the Audit Committee, and 

submitted for ratification, please refer to Appendix 3. 

 

Resolution: The proposal be and hereby was approved as seen below: 

Shares represented at the time of voting: 193,053,455. 

                       Votes in favor Votes against Votes abstained 

Cumulative votes 

(incl. electronic votes) 

188,038,601 

(45,692,193) 

10,437 

(10,437) 

5,004,417 

(3,111,976) 

% of the total 

represented share 

present 

97.40% 0.01% 2.59% 

 

Proposal 2                                     (Proposed by the board of directors) 

Proceedings: Ratification of the earning distribution of the Year 2022. 

Explanation: 

1. The net profit after tax of the Company's business final accounts of the Year 2022 is 

NT$623,958,494, and the distribution shall comply with the Company Act and the 

provisions of Article 27-1 and Article 28 of the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation. 

2. The earning distribution proposal is based on the allocation of NT$447,228,021 

from the distributable retained earnings. According to the shareholder's 

shareholding recorded in the shareholder register on the base date of the 

distribution, a cash dividend of NT$1.6 per common share, rounded down below 

one NT dollar; the total of the abnormal amount is included in the Company’s other 

income. 

3. If the proposal subsequently affected against the number of outstanding shares due 

to the purchase of treasury shares, the transfer and cancellation of treasury shares, 

the exercise of conversion of convertible corporate bonds, and the exercise of 

employee stock option certificates, etc., and changes the dividend rate of 

shareholders, the shareholders may fully authorize the chairman of the board to 

handle after the ratification of the proposal is confirmed. 

4. After this proposal is ratified by the shareholders' meeting, the chairman may be 

authorized to set the ex-dividend base date, issuance date, and other related matters. 

5. The distribution table for the year 2022, please refer to Appendix 4. 
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Resolution: The proposal be and hereby was approved as seen below: 

Shares represented at the time of voting: 193,053,455. 

                       Votes in favor Votes against Votes abstained 

Cumulative votes 

(incl. electronic votes) 

188,217,761 

(45,871,353) 

25,597 

(25,597) 

4,810,097 

(2,917,656) 

% of the total 

represented share 

present 

97.50% 0.01% 2.49% 

V、 Matters for Discussion I 

Proposal 1                                     (Proposed by the board of directors) 

Proposal: Amendment of certain clauses of the“Articles of association”. 

Explanations: Due to future operational needs, the company intends to amend some provisions of the " 

Articles of association ", please refer to Appendix 5. 

Resolution: The proposal be and hereby was approved as seen below: 

Shares represented at the time of voting: 193,053,455. 

                       Votes in favor Votes against Votes abstained 

Cumulative votes 

(incl. electronic votes) 

187,089,672 

(44,743,264) 

1,051,061 

(1,051,061) 

4,912,722 

(3,020,281) 

% of the total 

represented share 

present 

96.91% 0.54% 2.55% 

 

Proposal 2                                     (Proposed by the board of directors) 

Proposal: Amendment of certain clauses of “Procedures for Shareholders’ Meetings” submitted. 

Explanations: The Company has made amendments to its “Procedures for Shareholders’ Meetings” in 

accordance with Order Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate- 1110380914 by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission, please refer to Appendix 6. 

Resolution: The proposal be and hereby was approved as seen below: 

Shares represented at the time of voting: 193,053,455. 

                       Votes in favor Votes against Votes abstained 

Cumulative votes 

(incl. electronic votes) 

188,121,404 

(45,774,996) 

63,193 

(63,193) 

4,868,858 

(2,976,417) 

% of the total 

represented share 

present 

97.45% 0.03% 2.52% 

VI、 Election matters 

Proposal: Discussion on lifting director's non-compete clause in the Company. 

Explanations: 

1. A director who conducts business within the business scope of the Company for himself or others 
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shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of such an act and secures its 

approval in accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act. 

2. Considering based on business or investment business needs, it is proposed to comply the resolution 

of the shareholders' Meeting to lift the non-compete restriction newly Directors and their 

representatives 

3. Director Candidates lifting restrictions list of non-compete prohibition, please refer to Appendix 7. 

Resolution: 

Directors Elected List： 

Number of 

Nominee 
Name votes in favor 

4 Sheng, Kuo-Jung 385,592,113 

6 Lin, Yen-Huey 247,211,520 

5 Lin, Mei-Yu 235,306,064 

10669 Huang, Feng-Yih 191,847,336 

32030 Zhong-Bu Investment Co., Ltd. (Chang, Yu-

Jeng) 

186,098,630 

32030 Zhong-Bu Investment Co., Ltd. ( Lin, Yue-

Hong) 

164,645,867 

21403 Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd. ( Sheng, 

Chien-Chih) 

161,689,463 

15005 Hao-Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (Sun, Yong-

Lu) 

156,300,251 

16353 Wang, Hui-O 156,132,828 

Independent Director Elected List： 

Number of 

Nominee 
Name votes in favor 

 Chueh, Ming-Fu 99,918,478 

 Cheng, Wen-Zheng 93,783,594 

 Liu, Zheng-Huai 93,527,905 

 Zhuang, Bo-Nian 93,475,811 

 

 

 

VII、 Matters for Discussion II 

Proposal 1                                     (Proposed by the board of directors) 

Proposal: Discussion on lifting director's non-compete clause in the Company. 

Explanations:  

1. A director who conducts business within the business scope of the Company for himself or others 

shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of such an act and secures its 

approval in accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act. 
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2. Considering based on business or investment business needs, it is proposed to comply the resolution 

of the shareholders' Meeting to lift the non-compete restriction newly Directors and their 

representatives 

3. Director Candidates lifting restrictions list of non-compete prohibition, please refer to Appendix 8. 

 

Resolution: The proposal be and hereby was approved as seen below: 

Shares represented at the time of voting: 193,053,455. 

                       Votes in favor Votes against Votes abstained 

Cumulative votes 

(incl. electronic votes) 

185,147,639 

(42,824,414) 

3,009,196 

(2,992,196) 

4,896,620 

(2,997,996) 

% of the total 

represented share 

present 

95.90% 1.56% 2.54% 

 

 

VIII、 Extempore motion 

IX、 Adjournment: meeting ended at 10:36 am, June 13, 2023. 
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(Appendix 1) 

A.  Operation Report of the Year 2022 

1. Execution Results of the Business Plan: 

        Unit: New Taiwan Dollar, thousand 

Item 
Year 2022 Year 2021 

Amount % Amount % 

Operation Revenue 7,339,165 100 6,686,364 100 

Operation Costs (5,643,604) (77) (5,004,701) (75) 

Operation Margin 1,695,561 23 1,681,663 25 

Operation Expenses (1,156,625) (16) (1,230,031) (18) 

Operation Net Profit 538,936 7 451,632 7 

Non-operating income and expenses 229,562 3 (47,832) (1) 

Net profit before tax 768,498 10 403,800 6 

Income Tax Expense (139,425) (2) (63,157) (1) 

Net Income after tax 629,073 8 340,643 5 

Net income attributable to  

stockholders of the parent company 
623,958 8 341,823 5 

Net income attributable to non-controlling 

interests 
5,115 － (1,180) － 

2. Analysis of Profitability: 

Item Year 2022 Year 2021 

Return on Assets (%) 3.31 2.09 

Return on Equity of Shareholders (%) 7.10 4.50 

Ratio to Paid-in 

Capital (%) 

Operation Net Profit 19.28 16.16 

Net Income after tax 27.49 14.45 

Net Profit Ratio (%) 8.57 5.09 

Earnings per share(Not been retrospective adjusted) 2.23 1.23 

3. Status of Research and Development: 

1. The development results of Research & Development department in the last three years as follows: 

(1) Differential assembly. 

(2) Automatic and Tiptronic transmission components. 

(3) Torque conversion system parts. 

(4) Planetary gear set of Continuously Variable Transmission (CVT) gearbox. 

(5) Heavy locomotive gearbox and transmission components. 

(6) Gearbox parts for large agricultural machinery. 

(7) Precision mechanical reducer. 

(8) Gear hobbing machine, optical measuring instrument, gear scraping machine, chamfering 

machine. 

(9) All-Terrain vehicles (ATV) and electric scooters. 

(10) Electric vehicle gearbox components. 

(11) Gear rotation measuring instrument. 

(12) Aerospace parts. 

2. Major topics for future Research and Development 

In recent years, the Company has worked hard towards product differentiation and market 
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segmentation, committed to the development of high value-added products, and continued to 

invest in the design, research and development of green energy vehicle-related components to 

maintain its competitive advantage in the market and stabilize customers’ relationships and 

their orders. In response to industrial upgrade and business expansion, the Company has 

successively purchased high-precision machinery and inspection equipment, cultivated R&D 

and design talents, invested in new product research and development, introduced smart 

manufacturing technology, and shortened research and development time to meet customer 

needs. 

The focus of this year's research and development is to extend the previous year's results, 

to develop transmission systems for various vehicles, and to develop precision gears and 

transmission shafts required for green energy, environmentally friendly vehicle reducers. 

The scheduled research and development products are as follows: 

(1) American automobile automatic transmission components. 

(2) American automobile torque conversion system components. 

(3) New gearbox components for European high-end heavy locomotives. 

(4) Oil pump gear of American industrial machinery. 

(5) Gearbox parts of American Agricultural and Construction Machinery. 

(6) US patented Limited Slip Differential (LSD). 

(7) European series CVT components. 

(8) Air compressor components for truck brake system 

(9) Gear hobbing machine, gear scraping machine, chamfering machine. 

(10) All kinds of ATVs, electric scooters and medical assistance vehicles. 

(11) American electric vehicle gearbox components and their assembly. 

(12) Bevel gear and bevel gear differential assembly. 

(13) Planetary gear set of hybrid transmission. 

(14) Gear intelligent production integration technology. 

(15) Electric vehicle high-efficiency power transmission system assembly. 

(16) Aerospace parts. 

4. Business Plan outline of the Year 2023: 

1. Management Guideline: 

(1) Improve quality system and strengthen quality management: 

Nowadays, major automobile manufacturers are constantly improving in terms of 

precision and quality requirements. Therefore, in the Quality system and management, the 

Company reinforces the training of quality control personnel and prosecutes the management 

of suppliers, to assure product quality. Reducing the occurrence of internal defect and 

complaints from the external customers, it shall stabilize existing customers and establish a 

long-term good relationship with them.  

(2) Improve technical capabilities to meet customer requirements: 

Main customers of the Company have been European and American automobile factories, 

and first-tier system factories for a long time, especially in the parts of electric vehicles, and 

the precision requirements have been continuously improved. Therefore, the Company has not 
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only upgraded and improved the equipment for production and inspection but also reinforced 

the training of operators on the assembly lines and of supervisors’ capabilities for management 

to continue the excellence of technical research and development and meet the needs of 

customers.  

(3) Actively strive for cooperation opportunities with well-known foreign car manufacturers 

The Company continues to strive for more long-term cooperation opportunities with 

foreign automobile component manufacturers, automotive manufacturers, and emerging 

manufacturers of electric vehicles. With excellent quality and professional research and 

development technology, the Company seeks strategic alliances and technical cooperation 

opportunities with major transmission manufacturers, automobile manufacturers and electric 

vehicle manufacturers. 

(4) Promote Productivity 4.0: 

The new Dapumei factory in Chiayi County first promotes the smart manufacturing 

production model. In addition to purchasing automated and semi-automated machines and 

advanced inspection equipment, it plans to gradually implement smart automated production 

and inspection, which will assure quality, reduce labor costs, and improve production 

efficiency, furthermore optimizing its competitive edge in the industry and technical 

transformation. 

 

2. Production and Marketing policy 

(1) Strengthen the Company's research and development capabilities, provide customers 

with collaborative design services, prosecute the current IATF16949 quality certification 

system, improve business physique, and gradually promote toward Productivity 4.0, MES 

for manufacturing process and BI reports management.  Meanwhile, the Company 

reinforces several quick response mechanisms including Total Quality Management 

activities (TQM), Lean Manufacturing (TPS), and Quality System Basics (QSB), and 

focuses on intense contact with customers to improve customer satisfaction. 

(2) Implement corporate social responsibility, demonstrate the spirit of sustainable business 

operations, continue to follow the ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 environmental safety and 

health certification systems, improve workplace environmental safety and health, and 

respond to environmental protection, energy conservation and carbon reduction issues, 

and strengthen the implementation of ISO 14064 greenhouse gas inventory review, ISO 

14067 carbon footprint certification. 

(3) In response to the global topic of Net Zero carbon emission and the massive development 

trend of electric vehicles and smart driving by various automakers, with abundant 

experience and technology, actively strive for relevant types of customers in various 

regions, design and develop collaboratively with them to expand the market of reducer 

components for electric vehicles. 

(4) To transmission components, differentials, torque conversion systems, planetary gear sets, 

and other transmission components for existing automobile manufacturers, in addition to 

continuously improving quality and reducing costs, increasing the Company’s 
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competitiveness, and then strive existing customers’ orders from different regions in the 

world to expand the global market. 

3. Future development strategy: 

(1) The development of Taiwan’s automobile components is deeply influenced by the foreign 

automobile industry. From the perspective of the global consumer market, the Company 

continues to actively expand into the European, American, Chinese, and Emerging 

markets. However, in terms of energy conservation and carbon reduction, smart cars and 

electric vehicles are the focus of future vehicle development. Therefore, the Company 

must actively strive for major potential electric vehicle customers of related nature for 

collaborative development and cooperation to create new business opportunities. 

(2) Actively strive to cooperate and synchronize research and development with major 

international automobile manufacturers, transform for producing all-around systematic 

component assembly, thereby reducing the vicious competition of single-piece parts with 

simple manufacturing processes, to enhance profitability. It should be helpful for the 

Company’s revenues and profits.  

(3) Continue to promote the joint research of high-tech R&D projects with industry, 

government, academia, and research; also local industry-academic cooperation to 

cultivate R&D and manufacturing talents. In addition to assisting in industrial upgrading, 

it can also fuel new R&D and manufacturing for the long term, and support the Company 

to utilize current patents to high-value-added systematic products.  

(4) In line with the government's “Our aircrafts manufactured by our own” policy, the 

Company has passed the AS 9100 aerospace system certification which officially 

obtained the entry ticket to participate in the aerospace industry. It is hoped that the 

Company’s core technology of automotive precision manufacturing can also be applied 

to the aerospace technology field, and adds new elements to the Company's product 

diversification. 

4. Impacts by the external competition, the legal environment and the overall economics: 

(1) As countries are paying close attention to the global greenhouse effect caused by 

automobile exhaust gas, hybrid and electric vehicle products, new automobile companies 

have successively entered this market, it is nothing more than to produce environment-

friendly vehicles with lower prices and higher quality. Hota industrial manufacturing is a 

professional manufacturer of transmission parts. In addition to providing technical 

services closer to customer needs, the Company enhances its competitiveness in the 

global energy-saving vehicle market and contributes to the automotive industry and the 

Net Zero carbon emission. 

(2) Due to the events in the recent two years including overall issue with regards to 

worldwide deficiency of orders, materials, sea-freight containers, labor, etc. as a result of 

impacts by Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia (COVID-19) as well as the influences on the 

global economy and inflation in exchange rate resulting from the war, the Company shall 

take grasps on the rapid changes of customers and markets. For the global auto parts, 
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related industries intelligence, and domestic and foreign laws and regulations must be 

continuously collected to cope with various operational risks in the future. 

 

In the end, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their long-term support and 

encouragement.  Wish all shareholders healthy and everything as your heart wishes. 

 

 

Chairman of the Board: 

SHEN,GUO-RONG 

General Manager:  

CHEN, JUN-ZHI 

Accounting Supervisor 

CHEN, CHANG-YUAN 
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 (Appendix 2) Review Report for the Financial Statements of the Year 2022 by the Audit Committee. 
 

 

Audit Committee’s Review Report 

 

The board of directors has prepared and submitted the Company’s Business Report, Financial Statements, and 

Proposal for Earnings Distribution of the Company for the year 2022. PwC Taiwan has also audited the 

financial statements and issued the auditors’ report. The Business Report, Financial Statements, and Proposal 

for Earnings Distribution of the Company for the year 2022 have been reviewed and determined to be correct 

and accurate by the Audit Committee members of the Company. According to the Securities and Exchange 

Act and the Company Act, we hereby submit the report for ratification. 

 

 

Hota Industrial MFG. Co., Ltd. 

 

 

 

Convener of the Audit Committee: Zheng,Wen-zheng 

 

March 16, 2023 
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(Appendix 3) The Financial Statements of the Year 2022 

(Consolidated financial statements)  

 

 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
REPRESENTATION LETTER 

 
The entities that are required to be included in the consolidated financial statements of Hota Industrial 
Manufacturing Company Limited as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, under the Criteria 
Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated 
financial statements prepared in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard 10, 
“Consolidated Financial Statements.” In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, 
Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Company：Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 

 
Chairman：SHEN, GUO-RONG 

 
March 16, 2023 
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These financial statements are translated from the traditional Chinese version and are unaudited by a CPA. 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
(112) Ministry of Finance approved No.22004926 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated states of Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company 
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as 
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, according to our 
audit result and audit reports from other accountants(please refer to “Others” section),the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by the 
Securities Issuers and the International Reporting Standards(IRFS), International Accounting 
Standards(IAS), IFRIC Interpretations(IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and 
issues into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of 
China and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those materials that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2022 are stated as follows: 

Cut-off date for international export income 

Notes 

With regard to the accounting policy on income recognition, please refer to Note 4 (29) of the 
consolidated financial report. 

The Group mainly focused on the manufacturing and trading of related products for vehicle 
transmission parts. The main source of sales income is international export sales. Sales to customers 
involve different types of trading conditions. However, the Group recognize the sales revenue 
immediately after shipment. At the end of each period, ownership of the products that has not been 
transferred to the buyer due to the failure of the agreed trading conditions and the control of the 
product has not been transferred to the buyer. Because the data collection that does not meet the sales 
revenue recognition conditions involves a high degree of manual judgment and operation, the 
accountant has included the cut-off date of the export sales revenue as a significant review item. 

Corresponding verification procedures 

The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures 
are summarized as follows: 

1. Understand and evaluate the operating procedures and internal controls of the Company sales 
transactions, and test the controls. 

2. Perform a cut-off test for sales transactions within a certain period before and after the end of 
the financial report, and confirm that revenue is recognized in the appropriate period. 

Inventory allowance falling price and sluggish loss evaluation 

Notes 

With regard to inventory accounting policies, please refer to Note 4 (14) of the consolidated financial 
report. For important accounting estimates and assumptions for inventory evaluation, please refer to 
Note 5 (2) of the consolidated financial report. Please refer to Note 6 (7) of the consolidated financial 
report for the description of the inventory allowance loss. The Group’s inventory and inventory 
allowance losses as of December 31, 2022 were NT$3,575,340 thousand and NT$120,418 thousand, 
respectively. 

 

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and trading of automotive transmission parts related 
products. Due to the fierce competition in the automotive transmission parts market, there is a high risk 
of inventory falling-price loss or outdated price loss. The inventories of the Group are measured by cost 
and net realizable value. For inventories that are older than a certain period of age and those that are 
respectively identified as obsolete, provision is made for depreciation losses based on the degree of 
inventory depletion. The net realizable value used to evaluate obsoleteness often involves subjective 
judgments and therefore a high degree of uncertainty in estimation exists. Considering the Group’s 
inventory and its allowance for depreciation losses have a significant impact on the financial statements. 
The accountant believes that the Group’s inventory depreciation loss evaluation is one of the most 
important items in this year’s audit. 
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Corresponding verification procedures 

The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures 
are summarized as follows: 

1. Understand and evaluate the inventory allowance for depreciation losses, the operating 
procedures and internal controls mentioned. And then test the controls. 

2. Review the annual inventory-check plan and participate in the annual inventory check to 
evaluate the management’s control of outdated inventory. 

3. The policy for the provision of allowances for inventory evaluation losses is consistently 
adopted and the rationality of the provision policy is evaluated during the period of comparing 
the financial statements. 

4. Obtain the inventory age reports to check the inventory items to test the accuracy of the 
inventory age calculation logic and information. 

5. Regarding the estimated net realizable value of the inventory items, discuss with the 
management and obtain supporting documents, and then evaluate the rationality of the 
inventory allowance evaluation loss. 

Other matters-adopting other accountant’s audit reports 

The Group’s consolidated financial statements adopt equity method for investee companies whose 
financial statements have not been checked by this accountant, but by other accountants. Therefore, in 
the opinions expressed by this accountant on the above consolidated financial statements, the amounts 
listed in the financial statements of these companies are based on the audit reports of other accountants. 
The amount of investment using the equity method on December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were 
NT$556,090 thousand and NT$314,127 thousand, respectively, accounting for 2.43% and 1.49% of the 
total assets, respectively. From January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, the comprehensive income 
recognized by the equity method were NT$15,865 thousand in losses and NT$19,378 thousand in losses, 
respectively, each accounting for 2.59% and 5.93% of comprehensive income. 

 

 

Other matters – individual financial reports 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited has prepared its financial statements for the years 
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, and we have issued an unqualified audit report thereon for your 
information. 

 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers and the IRFS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparation the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. When applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance (including members of the audit Committee) are responsible for 
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our Objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.2. Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

3. 3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

P r i c e w a t e r h o u s e C o o p e r s  T a i w a n 
 

Wu, Song-yuan 
CPA           

Xu, Jian-ye 
 
Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved-certified No.: 
  Financial-Supervisory-Securitities-Auditing-
1090350620 

Financial-Supervisory-Securitities-Auditing-
1050035683 
 
M a r c h  1 6 ,  2 0 2 3 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance sheet 

2022 and 2021 December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
     December 31, 2022   December 31, 2021  

 ASSETS  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  
 CURRENT ASSETS                 
1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 1,072,452   5   $ 947,910   4  
1110 Financial assets measured 

at fair value through profit 
or loss-current 

 6(2) 

  10,562   -    -   -  
1120 Financial assets measured 

at fair value through other 
comprehensive income-
current 

 6(3) 

  83,735   -    126,799   1  
1136 Financial assets at 

amortized cost-current 
 6(4) and 8 

  204,848   1    33,872   -  
1150 Notes receivable, net  6(5)   968   -    50,462   -  
1170 Accounts receivable, net  6(5) and 7(2)   2,949,521   13    2,641,013   13  
1200 Other receivables  6(6)   197,690   1    121,713   1  
130X Inventories  6(7)   3,454,922   15    3,056,786   14  
1470 Other current assets     254,443   1    265,115   1  
11XX Total current assets     8,229,141   36    7,243,670   34  
 NON-CURRENT ASSETS                 
1517 Financial assets measured 

at fair value through other 
comprehensive income-
non-current 

 6(3) 

  65,040   -    59,513   -  
1535 Financial assets at 

amortized cost-non-
current 

 6(4) and 8 

  32   -    32   -  
1550 Investments accounted for 

using equity method 
 6(8) and 8 

  298,839   1    318,564   2  
1600 Property, plant and 

equipment 
 6(9) and 8 

  13,759,127   60    12,765,015   61  
1755 Right-of-use assets  6(10)   316,790   2    304,088   1  
1760 Investment properties, net  6(12)   30,387   -    30,387   -  
1780 Intangible assets     7,552   -    6,693   -  
1840 Deferred income tax 

assets 
 6(30) 

  48,296   -    62,159   -  
1900 Other non-current assets  6(13), 7(2) 

 and 8   171,107   1    313,498   2  
15XX Total non-current 

assets 
  

  14,697,170   64    13,859,949   66  
1XXX Total assets    $ 22,926,311   100   $ 21,103,619   100  
 

(continue in next page)
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance sheet 

2022 and 2021 December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     December 31, 2022   December 31, 2021  
 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 CURRENT LIABILITIES                 
2100 Short-term borrowings  6(14)  $ 2,060,484   9   $ 1,320,339   6  
2110 Short-term notes and bills 

payable 
 6(15) 

  1,060,000   5    1,260,000   6  
2150 Notes payable     524,871   2    921,500   5  
2170 Accounts payable     899,474   4    1,104,467   5  
2200 Other payables  6(16) and 7(2)   749,478   3    864,227   4  
2230 Income tax payable     138,043   1    65,160   -  
2280 Lease liabilities-current  6(10)   22,952   -    19,083   -  
2320 Long-term liabilities due within 

one year or business cycle 
 6(17) 

  1,243,405   6    1,159,609   6  
2399 Other current liabilities     64,952   -    18,993   -  
21XX Total current liabilities     6,763,659   30    6,733,378   32  
 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES                 
2540 Long-term loans  6(17)   6,744,180   29    5,173,125   25  
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities  6(30)   46,654   -    46,666   -  
2580 Lease liabilities-noncurrent  6(10)   258,391   1    247,554   1  
2600 Other non-current liabilities  6(17)(18)   137,767   1    158,768   1  
25XX Total non-current liabilities     7,186,992   31    5,626,113   27  
2XXX Total liabilities     13,950,651   61    12,359,491   59  
 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 
PARENT 

  

              
 Capital stock  6(20)               
3110 Common stock     2,795,175   12    2,795,175   13  
 Capital surplus  6(21)               
3200 Capital surplus     3,833,804   17    3,833,804   18  
 Retained earnings  6(22)               
3310 Appropriated as legal capital 

reserve 
  

  724,977   3    689,651   4  
3320 Appropriated as special capital 

reserve 
  

  60,354   -    48,236   -  
3350 Unappropriated earnings     1,530,514   7    1,316,593   6  
 Other equity  6(23)               
3400 Other equity   (  95,158 )  -  (  60,354 )  -  
31XX Equity attributable to 

shareholders of the parent 
  

  8,849,666   39    8,623,105   41  
36XX Non-controlling interests     125,994   -    121,023   -  
3XXX Total equity     8,975,660   39    8,744,128   41  
 Unrecognized contractual 

commitments  
 9 

              
3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 22,926,311   100   $ 21,103,619   100  

 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 
 

     2022   2021  

Item  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  

4000 Operating revenue  6(24) and 7 

(2)  $ 7,339,165   100   $ 6,686,364   100  

5000 Cost of revenue  6(7) and 7(2) (  5,643,604 ) ( 77 ) (  5,004,701 ) ( 75 ) 

5900 Gross profit     1,695,561   23    1,681,663   25  

 Operating expenses  6(29)               

6100 Sales and marketing expenses   (  874,684 ) ( 12 ) (  902,982 ) ( 13 ) 

6200 General and administrative 

expenses 

  

(  161,118 ) ( 2 ) (  209,169 ) ( 3 ) 

6300 Research and development   (  105,803 ) ( 2 ) (  113,808 ) ( 2 ) 

6450 Expected credit losses  12(2) (  15,020 )  -  (  4,072 )  -  

6000 Total operating expenses   (  1,156,625 ) ( 16 ) (  1,230,031 ) ( 18 ) 

6900 Income from operations     538,936   7    451,632   7  

 Non-operating income and 

expenses 

  

              

7100 Interest income  6(25)   3,078   -    949   -  

7010 Other income  6(26) and 7 

(2)   77,355   1    101,135   1  

7020 Other gains and losses  6(27)   266,880   4  (  59,227 ) ( 1 ) 

7050 Finance costs  6(28) (  125,587 ) ( 2 ) (  89,916 ) ( 1 ) 

7060 Share of associates and joint 

ventures income accounted for 

using equity method 

 6(8) 

  7,836   -  (  773 )  -  

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses 

  

  229,562   3  (  47,832 ) ( 1 ) 

7900 Income before income tax     768,498   10    403,800   6  

7950 Income tax expense  6(30) (  139,425 ) ( 2 ) (  63,157 ) ( 1 ) 

8200 Net income    $ 629,073   8   $ 340,643   5  

 

 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 
     2022   2021  

Item  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  
 Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net 
  

              
 Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

              
8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit 

obligation 
 6(19) 

 $ 15,289   -   $ 5,784   -  
8316 Unrealized gains or losses on 

investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

 6(3) 

(  7,451 )  -    1,677   -  
8320 Share of associates and joint 

ventures other comprehensive 
income accounted for using equity 
method - Items that will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss 

 6(8)(23) 

(  27,084 )  -  (  19,202 )  -  
8349 Income tax benefit (expense) 

related to items that will not be 
reclassified subsequently 

 6(30) 

(  2,923 )  -  (  1,147 )  -  
8310 Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

(  22,169 )  -  (  12,888 )  -  
 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

              
8361 Exchange differences arising on 

translation of foreign operations 
 6(23) 

  33,418   -  (  8,129 )  -  
8367 Unrealized gains or losses on 

investments in debt instruments 
measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, net 

 6(23) 

(  31,814 )  -    1,514   -  
8370 Share of associates and joint 

ventures other comprehensive 
income accounted for using equity 
method – Items that may be 
reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss 

 6(8)(23) 

  2,552   -    4,031   -  
8399 Income tax benefit (expense) 

related to items that will be 
reclassified subsequently 

 6(30) 

  2,013   -    1,383   -  
8360 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

  6,169   -  (  1,201 )  -  
8300 Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net 
  

( $ 16,000 )  -  ( $ 14,089 )  -  

8500 Total comprehensive income    $ 613,073   8   $ 326,554   5  

 Net income attributable to:                 
8610 Shareholders of the parent    $ 623,958   8   $ 341,823   5  
8620 Non-controlling interests     5,115   -  (  1,180 )  -  
 Total    $ 629,073   8   $ 340,643   5  

 Total comprehensive income 
attributable to: 

  
              

8710 Shareholders of the parent    $ 608,102   8   $ 328,016   5  
8720 Non-controlling interests     4,971   -  (  1,462 )  -  
 Total    $ 613,073   8   $ 326,554   5  

            
 Basic earnings per share           
9750 Total basic earnings per share  6(31)  $ 2.23   $ 1.23  

 Diluted earnings per share           
9850 Total diluted earnings per share  6(31)  $ 2.23   $ 1.23  

 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 

   Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent     

       Retained earnings  Other equity       

 

Note 

 

Common stock 

 

Capital surplus, 
additional paid-in 

capital arising 
from common 

stock 

 

Legal reserve 

 

Special reserve 

 

Unappropriated 
retained earnings 

 

Exchange 
differences 
arising on 

translation of 
foreign 

operations 

 Unrealized gains 
or losses on 

financial assets 
measured at fair 
value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income 

 

Total 

 

Non-controlling 
interests 

 

Total equity 
 

2021                                          
  Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 2,545,175    $ 1,906,479    $ 660,162    $ 48,236    $ 1,227,622   ( $ 42,421 )   $ 7,305    $ 6,352,558    $ 54,485    $ 6,407,043  

  Net income    -    -    -    -    341,823    -    -    341,823   ( 1,180 )   340,643  
  Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net of income tax 
6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    5,160   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )  ( 13,807 )  ( 282 )  ( 14,089 ) 
  Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -    346,983   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )   328,016   ( 1,462 )   326,554  

  Appropriations of earnings in 2020 6(22)                                         
    Special reserve    -    -    29,489    -   ( 29,489 )   -    -    -    -    -  
    Common stock and cash dividends 

to shareholders 
 

  -   ( 72,675 )   -    -   ( 234,794 )   -    -   ( 307,469 )   -   ( 307,469 ) 
  Cash capital increase 6(20)   250,000    2,000,000    -    -    -    -    -    2,250,000    -    2,250,000  
  Disposal of investments in equity 

instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 

6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    6,271    -   ( 6,271 )   -    -    -  
  Non-controlling interests    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    68,000    68,000  

  Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 689,651    $ 48,236    $ 1,316,593   ( $ 45,136 )  ( $ 15,218 )   $ 8,623,105    $ 121,023    $ 8,744,128  

2022                                          
  Balance at January 1, 2022    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 689,651    $ 48,236    $ 1,316,593   ( $ 45,136 )  ( $ 15,218 )   $ 8,623,105    $ 121,023    $ 8,744,128  
  Net income    -    -    -    -    623,958    -    -    623,958    5,115    629,073  
  Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net of income tax 
6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    13,420    37,978   ( 67,254 )  ( 15,856 )  ( 144 )  ( 16,000 ) 

  Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -    637,378    37,978   ( 67,254 )   608,102    4,971    613,073  
  Appropriations of earnings in 2021 6(22)                                         
    Legal reserve    -    -    35,326    -   ( 35,326 )   -    -    -    -    -  
    Special reserve    -    -    -    12,118   ( 12,118 )   -    -    -    -    -  
    Common stock and cash dividends 

to shareholders 
 

  -    -    -    -   ( 381,541 )   -    -   ( 381,541 )   -   ( 381,541 ) 
  Disposal of investments in equity 

instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 

6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    5,528    -   ( 5,528 )   -    -    -  

  Balance at December 31, 2022    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 724,977    $ 60,354    $ 1,530,514   ( $ 7,158 )  ( $ 88,000 )   $ 8,849,666    $ 125,994    $ 8,975,660  

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated 

financial statements. 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  

NOTE 

 January 1 to 

December 31, 2022 

   January 1 to 

December 31, 2021  

            

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            

Income before income tax    $ 768,498    $ 403,800  

Adjustments for:            

Provided by (used in) operating activities            

Depreciation-properties  6(9)(29)   623,837     559,415  

Depreciation-right-of-use assets  6(10)(29)   17,926     15,592  

Amortization  6(29)   5,328     6,373  

Expected credit losses  12(2)   15,020     4,072  

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities measured 

at fair value through profit or loss 

  

  10,939  

 

  -  

Interest expenses  6(28)   121,373     85,708  

Interest expenses-lease liabilities  6(28)   4,214     4,208  

Interest income  6(25) (  3,078 )  (  949 ) 

Share of associates losses (income) accounted for 

using equity method 

 6(8) 

(  7,836 ) 

 

  773  

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment  6(27) (  6,823 )  (  5,630 ) 

Unrealized exchange loss (profit)   (  37,065 )    37,465  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities            

Changes in operating assets            

Notes receivable     49,917   (  31,967 ) 

Accounts receivable (including related-parties)   (  348,686 )  (  414,847 ) 

Other receivables   (  74,611 )  (  9,002 ) 

Inventories   (  393,085 )  (  1,160,392 ) 

Other current assets     11,257   (  106,631 ) 

Increase in other non-current assets   (  40,621 )  (  15,617 ) 

Changes in liabilities            

Notes payable   (  396,629 )    489,988  

Accounts payable (including related-parties)   (  211,638 )    527,247  

Other payables   (  111,860 )    306,051  

Other current liabilities     39,915   (  48,867 ) 

Other non-current liabilities   (  6,410 )    1,230  

Cash generated from operations     29,882     648,020  

Income tax paid   (  54,694 )  (  42,627 ) 

Interest received     2,606     950  

Interest paid   (  128,699 )  (  90,406 ) 

Net cash generated from (used in) operating 

activities 

  

(  150,905 ) 

 

  515,937  

 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  

NOTE 

 January 1 to 

December 31, 2022 

   January 1 to 

December 31, 2021  

            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES            

Disposal of financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income-current 

  
 $ 29,077    $ 1,636 

 

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income-non-current 

  
(  4,519 )  (  7,121 

) 

Decrease (Increase) in financial assets at amortized 

cost 

  
(  169,330 )    54,839 

 

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 

  
(  21,501 )    - 

 

Acquisition of investments accounted for using 

equity method 

  
(  5,000 )  (  11,925 

) 

Dividends received from investments accounted for 

using equity method 

  
  2,441     1,221 

 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(32) (  1,394,627 )  (  1,582,254 ) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 

  
  8,015     197,125 

 

Decrease (Increase) in refundable deposits   (  1,178 )    7,646  

Increase in intangible assets   (  6,177 )  (  5,791 ) 

Net cash used in investing activities   (  1,562,799 )  (  1,344,624 ) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES            

Increase (Decrease) in short-term borrowings  6(33)   732,184   (  762,651 ) 

Increase (Decrease) in short-term notes and bills 

payable 

 6(33) 
(  200,000 )    660,000 

 

Proceeds from long-term loans  6(33)   4,272,971     1,385,207  

Repayment of long-term loans  6(33) (  2,641,889 )  (  2,238,866 ) 

Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities  6(33) (  16,288 )  (  13,468 ) 

Cash capital increase  6(20)   -     2,250,000  

Cash dividends  6(22) 

(33) 
(  381,541 )  (  307,469 

) 

Net cash generated from financing activities     1,765,437     972,753  

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE     72,809     8,177  

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS 

  
  124,542     152,243 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 

OF YEAR 

  
  947,910     795,667 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF 

YEAR 

  
 $ 1,072,452    $ 947,910 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be 

read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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These financial statements are translated from the traditional Chinese version and are unaudited by a CPA. 
 
  

Independent Auditor’s Report 
(112) Ministry of Finance approved No. 22004725 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
 

Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Individual states of Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
(the “Company”), which comprise the individual balance sheets as of December 31,2022 and 2021, and 
the individual statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the notes to the individual financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying individual financial statements present fairly, according to our audit 
result and audit reports from other accountants (please refer to “Other matters” section), the individual 
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its individual financial 
performance and its individual cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by the Securities Issuers and the International 
Reporting Standards (IRFS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), 
and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issues into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission 
of the Republic of China. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Individual 
Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Key Audit Matters 
 

Key audit matters are those materials that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the individual financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Individual financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 
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Key audit matters for the company’s individual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2022 are stated as follows: 
 
Cut-off date for international export income 
 
Notes 
With regard to the accounting policy on income recognition, please refer to Note 4 (28) of the individual 
financial report. 
 
The Company mainly focused on the manufacturing and trading of related products for vehicle 
transmission parts. The main source of sales income is international export sales. Sales to customers 
involve different types of trading conditions. However, the Company recognized the sales revenue 
immediately after shipment. At the end of each period, ownership of the products that has not been 
transferred to the buyer due to the failure of the agreed trading conditions and the control of the product 
has not been transferred to the buyer. Because the data collection that does not meet the sales revenue 
recognition conditions involves a high degree of manual judgment and operation, the accountant has 
included the cut-off date of the export sales revenue as a significant review item. 
 
Corresponding verification procedures 
The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures 
are summarized as follows: 
 

1. Understand and evaluate the operating procedures and internal controls of the Company sales 
transactions, and test the controls. 

2. Perform a cut-off test for sales transactions within a certain period before and after the end of 
the financial report, and confirm that revenue is recognized in the appropriate period. 
 

Valuation on allowance of inventory write-downs and obsolescence loss 
 
Notes 
With regard to inventory accounting policies, please refer to Note 4(13) of the individual financial 
report. For important accounting estimates and assumptions for inventory evaluation, please refer to 
Note 5(2) of the individual financial report. Please refer to Note 6(6) of the individual financial report 
for the description of loss allowance of inventory write-downs. The Company’s total amount of 
inventories and loss allowance of inventory write-downs as of December 31, 2022 were NT$3,055,903 
thousand and NT$100,702 thousand, respectively. 
 

The Company is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and trading of automotive transmission parts 
related products. Due to the fierce competition in the automotive transmission parts market, there is a 
high risk of inventory falling-price loss or outdated price loss. The inventories of the Company are 
measured by cost and net realizable value. For inventories that are older than a certain period of age 
and those that are respectively identified as obsolete, provision is made for depreciation losses based 
on the degree of inventory depletion. The net realizable value used to evaluate obsoleteness often 
involves subjective judgments and therefore a high degree of uncertainty in estimation exists. 
Considering the Company’s inventory and its allowance for depreciation losses have a significant impact 
on the financial statements. The accountant believes that the Company’s inventory depreciation loss 
evaluation is one of the most important items in this year’s audit. 
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Corresponding verification procedures 
The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures 
are summarized as follows: 
 

1. Understand and evaluate the loss allowance of inventory write-downs, the operating procedures 
and internal controls mentioned. And then test the controls. 

2. Review the annual inventory-check plan and participate in the annual inventory check to 
evaluate the management’s control of outdated inventory. 

3. The policy for the provision of allowances for inventory evaluation losses is consistently adopted 
and the rationality of the provision policy is evaluated during the period of comparing the 
financial statements. 

4. Obtain the inventory age reports to check the inventory items to test the accuracy of the 
inventory age calculation logic and information. 

5. Regarding the estimated net realizable value of the inventory items, discuss with the 
management and obtain supporting documents, and then evaluate the rationality of the 
inventory allowance evaluation loss. 
 

Other matters-adopting other accountant’s audit reports 
 
The company’s individual financial statements adopt equity method for investee companies whose 
financial statements have not been checked by this accountant, but by other accountants. Therefore, in 
the opinions expressed by this accountant on the above individual financial statements, the amounts 
listed in the financial statements of these companies are based on the audit reports of other 
accountants. The amount of investments accounted for using the equity method as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021 were NT$125,922 thousand and 59,394 thousand, respectively, accounting for 0.59% 
and 0.30% of the total assets, respectively. From January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, the 
comprehensive income recognized for using the equity method were NT$1,244 thousand and 
NT$2,843 thousand, respectively, accounting for 0.20% and 0.87% of comprehensive income, 
respectively. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Individual Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers and the IRFS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China ,and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of individual financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparation the Individual financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance (including members of the audit Committee) are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Individual Financial Statements 
 
Our Objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the individual financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Individual financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the individual financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to the 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Individual financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the individual financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Individual financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the Individual financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance departments, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during the audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements and communicated with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of significance in the audit of the individual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 

 

 

P r i c e w a t e r h o u s e C o o p e r s  T a i w a n 
 

Wu, Song-yuan 
CPA           

Xu, Jian-ye 
 

Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved-certified No.: 
Financial-Supervisory-Securitities-Auditing-1090350620 
Financial-Supervisory-Securitities-Auditing-1050035683 
 
March 16, 2023 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 

Individual Balance Sheet 

2022 and 2021 December 31 

 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     December 31, 2022   December 31, 2021  
 Assets  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 Current assets                 
1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 993,490   4   $ 776,622   4  
1120 Financial assets measured 

at fair value through other 
comprehensive income-
current 

 6(2) 

  41,808   -    78,221   1  
1136 Financial assets at 

amortized cost-current 
 6(3) and 8 

  155,930   1    2,121   -  
1150 Notes receivable, net  6(4)   -   -    25,442   -  
1170 Accounts receivable, net  6(4)   2,919,013   14    2,472,606   13  
1180 Accounts receivable-

related parties, net 
 7(2) 

  55,538   -    37,761   -  
1200 Other receivables  7(2)   173,888   1    67,702   -  
130X Inventories  6(6)   2,955,201   14    2,681,916   14  
1470 Other current assets     163,811   1    224,690   1  
11XX Total current assets     7,458,679   35    6,367,081   33  
 Non-current assets                 
1517 Financial assets measured 

at fair value through other 
comprehensive income-
non-current 

 6(2) 

  60,111   -    54,313   -  
1550 Investments accounted for 

using equity method 
 6(7) 

  935,875   5    913,788   5  
1600 Property, plant and 

equipment 
 6(8) and 8 

  12,434,251   59    11,569,887   60  
1755 Right-of-use assets  6(9)   251,211   1    250,524   1  
1760 Investment property, net  6(11)   30,387   -    30,387   -  
1780 Intangible assets     7,402   -    6,142   -  
1840 Deferred income tax 

assets 
 6(30) 

  45,427   -    58,738   -  
1900 Other non-current assets  6(12) and 7(2)   55,394   -    243,429   1  
15XX Total non-current 

assets 
  

  13,820,058   65    13,127,208   67  
1XXX Total assets    $ 21,278,737   100   $ 19,494,289   100  
 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 

Individual Balance Sheet 

2022 and 2021 December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 2 2   D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 2 1  
 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  Note  A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %  

 Current liabilities                 
2100 Short-term borrowings  6(13) and 8  $ 1,747,359   8   $ 947,263   5  
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable  6(14)   1,060,000   5    1,260,000   7  
2150 Notes payable     524,871   2    921,500   5  
2170 Accounts payable  7(2)   819,121   4    958,995   5  
2200 Other payables  6(15) and 7(2)   691,583   3    795,731   4  
2230 Income tax payable  6(30)   137,139   1    65,160   -  
2280 Lease liabilities-current     16,401   -    14,868   -  
2320 Long-term liabilities due within 

one year or business cycle 
 6(16) and 8 

  604,845   3    860,341   4  
2399 Other current liabilities     7,056   -    15,779   -  
21XX Total current liabilities     5,608,375   26    5,839,637   30  
 Non-current liabilities                 
2540 Long-term loans  6(16) and 8   6,415,691   30    4,614,720   24  
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities  6(30)   46,654   -    46,666   -  
2580 Lease liabilities-non-current  6(9)   241,620   1    240,836   1  
2600 Other non-current liabilities  6(18)   116,731   1    129,325   1  
25XX Total non-current liabilities     6,820,696   32    5,031,547   26  
2XXX Total liabilities     12,429,071   58    10,871,184   56  
 Equity                 
 Capital stock  6(19)               
3110 Common stock     2,795,175   13    2,795,175   14  
 Capital surplus  6(20)               
3200 Capital surplus     3,833,804   18    3,833,804   19  
 Retained earnings  6(21)               
3310 Legal reserve     724,977   4    689,651   4  
3320 Special reserve     60,354   -    48,236   -  
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings     1,530,514   7    1,316,593   7  
 Other equity  6(22)               
3400 Other equity   (  95,158 )  -  (  60,354 )  -  
3XXX Total equity     8,849,666   42    8,623,105   44  
 Commitments and contingencies  9               
3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 21,278,737   100   $ 19,494,289   100  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

 

 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
Individual Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 

     2022   2021  
Item  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  

4000 Operating revenue  6(23) and 7 
(2)  $ 6,898,232   100   $ 6,230,770   100  

5000 Operating costs  6(6)(28) 
(29) and 7 
(2) (  5,313,060 ) ( 77 ) (  4,628,884 ) ( 75 ) 

5900 Gross profit     1,585,172   23    1,601,886   25  
5910 Unrealized loss (profit) of 

sales 
  

(  42 )  -    3,220   -  
5950 Net gross profit     1,585,130   23    1,605,106   25  
 Operating expenses  6(28) 

(29)               
6100 Sales and marketing 

expenses 
  

(  828,890 ) ( 12 ) (  861,507 ) ( 14 ) 
6200 General and 

administrative expenses 
  

(  94,797 ) ( 1 ) (  89,759 ) ( 1 ) 
6300 Research and 

development 
  

(  105,803 ) ( 2 ) (  113,808 ) ( 2 ) 
6450 Expected credit loss  12(2) (  15,148 )  -  (  4,164 )  -  
6000 Total operating 

expenses 
  

(  1,044,638 ) ( 15 ) (  1,069,238 ) ( 17 ) 
6900 Income from operations     540,492   8    535,868   8  
 Non-operating income and 

expenses 
  

              
7100 Interest income  6(24)   2,345   -    482   -  
7010 Other income  6(25)   36,332   1    26,010   -  
7020 Other gains and losses  6(26)   276,445   4  (  77,381 ) ( 1 ) 
7050 Finance costs  6(27) (  109,622 ) ( 2 ) (  75,806 ) ( 1 ) 
7070 Share of associates and 

joint ventures income 
accounted for using 
equity method 

 6(7) 

  17,090   -  (  8,172 )  -  
7000 Total non-operating 

income and expenses 
  

  222,590   3  (  134,867 ) ( 2 ) 
7900 Income before income 

tax 
  

  763,082   11    401,001   6  
7950 Income tax expense  6(30) (  139,124 ) ( 2 ) (  59,178 ) ( 1 ) 
8200 Net income    $ 623,958   9   $ 341,823   5  
 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
Individual Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 
 

     2 0 2 2   2 0 2 1  
Item  Note  A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %  

 Other comprehensive income (loss), 
net 

  
              

 Items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss 

  
              

8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit 
obligation 

 6(18) 
 $ 14,992   -   $ 5,584   -  

8316 Unrealized gains or losses on 
investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

  

(  529 )  -  (  582 )  -  
8330 Share of subsidiaries, associates and 

joint ventures other comprehensive 
income accounted for using equity 
method - Items that will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss 

  

(  33,485 )  -  (  16,491 )  -  
8349 Income tax benefit (expense) related 

to items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently 

 6(30) 

(  2,998 )  -  (  1,117 )  -  
8310 Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

(  22,020 )  -  (  12,606 )  -  
 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

              
8361 Exchange differences arising on 

translation of foreign operations 
  

  33,413   -  (  8,129 )  -  
8367 Unrealized gains or losses on 

investments in debt instruments 
measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, net 

  

(  31,814 )  -    1,514   -  
8380 Share of subsidiaries, associates and 

joint ventures other comprehensive 
income accounted for using equity 
method - Items that may be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss 

  

  2,552   -    4,031   -  
8399 Income tax benefit (expense) related 

to items that will be reclassified 
subsequently 

 6(30) 

  2,013   -    1,383   -  
8360 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss 
  

  6,164   -  (  1,201 )  -  
8300 Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net 
  

( $ 15,856 )  -  ( $ 13,807 )  -  

8500 Total comprehensive income    $ 608,102   9   $ 328,016   5  

            
9750 Total basic earnings per share  6(31)  $ 2.23   $ 1.23  

 Diluted earnings per share           
9850 Total diluted earnings per share  6(31)  $ 2.23   $ 1.23  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 

 



 34 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
Individual Statements of Changes in Equity 
2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
       Retained earnings  Other equity   

 

Note 

 

Common stock 

 

Capital surplus 

 

Legal reserve 

 

Special reserve 

 

Unappropriated 
retained earnings 

 
Exchange 
differences 
arising on 

translation of 
foreign 

operations 

 Unrealized gains or 
losses on financial 
assets measured at 
fair value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income 

 

Total equity 

 
2021                                  
  Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 2,545,175    $ 1,906,479    $ 660,162    $ 48,236    $ 1,227,622   ( $ 42,421 )   $ 7,305    $ 6,352,558  
    Net income    -    -    -    -    341,823    -    -    341,823  
    Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income 

tax 
6(22) 

  -    -    -    -    5,160   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )  ( 13,807 ) 
  Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -    346,983   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )   328,016  
  Appropriations of earnings in 2020 6(21)                                 
    Legal reserve    -    -    29,489    -   ( 29,489 )   -    -    -  
    Cash dividends    -   ( 72,675 )   -    -   ( 234,794 )   -    -   ( 307,469 ) 
  Cash capital increase 6(19)(20)   250,000    2,000,000    -    -    -    -    -    2,250,000  
  Disposal of investments in equity instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income 

6(22) 

  -    -    -    -    6,271    -   ( 6,271 )   -  
  Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 689,651    $ 48,236    $ 1,316,593   ( $ 45,136 )  ( $ 15,218 )   $ 8,623,105  

2022                                  
  Balance at January 1, 2022    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 689,651    $ 48,236    $ 1,316,593   ( $ 45,136 )  ( $ 15,218 )   $ 8,623,105  
    Net income    -    -    -    -    623,958    -    -    623,958  
    Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income 

tax 
6(22) 

  -    -    -    -    13,420    37,978   ( 67,254 )  ( 15,856 ) 
  Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -    637,378    37,978   ( 67,254 )   608,102  
  Appropriations of earnings in 2021 6(21)                                 
    Legal reserve    -    -    35,326    -   ( 35,326 )   -    -    -  
    Special reserve    -    -    -    12,118   ( 12,118 )   -    -    -  
    Cash dividends    -    -    -    -   ( 381,541 )   -    -   ( 381,541 ) 
  Disposal of investments in equity instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income 

6(22) 

  -    -    -    -    5,528    -   ( 5,528 )   -  
  Balance at December 31, 2022    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 724,977    $ 60,354    $ 1,530,514   ( $ 7,158 )  ( $ 88,000 )   $ 8,849,666  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

 

 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
Individual Statement of Cash Flows 

2022 and 2021 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 
 

  

Note 

 January 1 to 

December 31, 2022 

   January 1 to 

December 31, 2021  

            

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            

Income before income tax    $ 763,082    $ 401,001  

Adjustments for:            

Provided by (used in) operating activities            

Depreciation  6(8)(28)   598,236     526,139  

Depreciation-Right-of-use assets  6(9)(28)   11,989     10,391  

Amortization  6(28)   4,851     5,971  

Interest expenses  6(27)   105,616     71,809  

Interest expenses-Lease liabilities  6(9)(27)   4,006     3,997  

Interest income  6(24) (  2,345 )  (  482 ) 

Expected credit loss  12(2)   15,148     4,164  

Share of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures losses 

accounted for using equity method 

 6(7) 

(  17,090 ) 

 

  8,172  

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment  6(26) (  7,954 )  (  5,010 ) 

Unrealized sales loss (profit)     42   (  3,220 ) 

Unrealized exchange loss (profit)   (  67,654 )    36,514  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities            

Changes in operating assets            

Notes receivable, net     25,442   (  15,600 ) 

Accounts receivable   (  493,369 )  (  418,823 ) 

Accounts receivable-related-parties   (  17,777 )  (  19,096 ) 

Other receivables   (  105,713 )  (  26,925 ) 

Inventories   (  273,285 )  (  1,005,878 ) 

Other current assets     60,879   (  94,957 ) 

Other non-current assets     -     1  

Changes in liabilities            

Notes payable (including related-parties)   (  396,629 )    496,499  

Accounts payable (including related-parties)   (  139,874 )    520,825  

Other payables   (  145,137 )    282,403  

Other current liabilities   (  8,723 )  (  53,542 ) 

Other non-current liabilities     3,585   (  1,123 ) 

Cash generated from (used in) operations   (  82,674 )    723,230  

Interest received     1,872     483  

Interest paid   (  108,535 )  (  72,493 ) 

Income tax paid   (  54,833 )  (  42,488 ) 

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities   (  244,170 )    608,732  

 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 
Individual Statement of Cash Flows 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  

Note 

 January 1 to 
December 31, 

2022 

   January 1 to 
December 31, 

2021  
            
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

  
    

 
    

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income-
current 

  

 $ -  

 

( $ 1,293 ) 
Disposal of financial assets measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income-
current 

  

  34,605  

 

  3,907  
Decrease (Increase) in financial assets at 
amortized cost 

  
(  153,809 ) 

 
  55,233  

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income-
non-current 

  

(  4,519 ) 

 

(  5,401 ) 
Acquisition of investments accounted for using 
equity method 

  
(  5,000 ) 

 
(  79,925 ) 

Dividends received from investments accounted 
for using equity method 

  
  2,441  

 
  1,221  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(32) (  1,234,042 )  (  1,312,904 ) 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment     8,332     43,481  
Acquisition of intangible assets   (  6,111 )  (  4,839 ) 
Decrease (Increase) in refundable deposits   (  999 )    4,959  
Net cash used in investing activities   (  1,359,102 )  (  1,295,561 ) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

  
    

 
    

Increase (Decrease) in short-term borrowings  6(33)   794,943   (  898,390 ) 
Increase (Decrease) in short-term notes and bills 
payable 

 6(33) 
(  200,000 ) 

 
  660,000  

Repayment of long-term loans  6(33) (  1,967,998 )  (  6,286,414 ) 
Proceeds from long-term loans  6(33)   3,512,287     5,423,302  
Repayment of the principal portion of lease 
liabilities 

 6(33) 
(  10,360 ) 

 
(  12,169 ) 

Cash dividends  6(21) (  381,541 )  (  307,469 ) 
Cash capital increase  6(19)   -     2,250,000  
Net cash generated from financing activities     1,747,331     828,860  
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  
  72,809  

 
(  52,970 ) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 

  
  216,868  

 
  89,061  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

  
  776,622  

 
  687,561  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF 
YEAR 

  
 $ 993,490  

 
 $ 776,622  

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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 (Appendix 4) Table of Earnings Distribution 
 

Hota Industrial MFG. Co., Ltd. 

Earning Distribution statement of the year 2022 

Unit: New Taiwan Dollar 

Item Amount Remark 

Unappropriated retained earnings at beginning of period 887,608,050   

    Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 13,419,895   

    Sale of Equity Instrument at fair value through other 

comprehensive income. 

5,527,871  
 

Net Profit of year 2022 623,958,494   

Unappropriated retained earnings, Total 1,530,514,310   

    Legal Reserve (10%) (64,290,626)   

    Special Reserve (34,804,596)   

Total retained earnings 1,431,419,088    

Current Distribution Items   

    Cash Dividend（NTD 1.6 per share） (447,228,021)   

    Stock Dividend（NTD 0.0 per share） －   

Current Distribution (447,228,021)   

Unappropriated retained earnings at end of period 984,191,067   

1. The Company's earnings distribution policy adopts the priority to allocate the earnings of the 

year 2022, if insufficient shall be compensated by the surplus of previous years on the first-in-

first-out principle. 

2. The ex-right/ex-dividend rate is calculated based on the total number of shares issued and 

outstanding 279,517,513 shares; the actual allotment amount per thousand shares is calculated 

based on the actual number of shares issued and outstanding on the ex-rights/ex-dividend base 

date. In the case of this earnings distribution proposal, if the number of distributable shares of the 

Company’s common shares has changed [reason for the change: It is the number of converted 

shares of convertible corporate bonds, or convertible special shares, or employee stock option], 

the shareholders’ ex-right / ex-dividend ratio changes and need modification, shareholders' 

meeting is proposed to authorize the board of directors to deal with it. 

 

Chairman of the Board: 

SHEN, GUO-RONG 

General Manager:  

CHEN, JUN-ZHI 

Accounting Supervisor 

CHEN, CHANG-YUAN 
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(Appendix 5) Comparison table of the “Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” 

Before and After version. 
Article 

No. 
Revised Article Current Article Description 

Article 
8-1: 

The Company’s shareholders’ 
meeting can be held by means of 
visual communication network or 
other methods promulgated by the 
central competent authority. Under 
the circumstances of calamities, 
incidents, or force majeure, the 
central competent authority may 
promulgate a ruling that authorizes 
a company, which has no above 
provision in its Articles of 
Incorporation, within a certain 
period of time can hold its 
shareholders’ meeting by means of 
visual communication network or 
other promulgated methods. 

 Article added 
in accordance 
with Article 
172-2 of the 
Company 
Act. 

Article 
28: 

The Company’s dividend policy 
shall proceed in the following: the 
Company considers the capital 
needs of the industry, improves the 
financial structure, as well as the 
business growth. The Company’s 
Board of Directors considers the 
profitability and the business 
requirements, and proposes an 
earnings distribution plan, and 
submits it to shareholders' meeting 
for ratification. In the earning 
distribution plan proposed by the 
board of directors, the total amount 
of shareholders’ dividends should 
be between 30% and 80% of the 
current year’s retained earnings, and 
the dividend paid in cash should not 
be less than 20% of the total amount 
of shareholders’ dividends. 

The Company’s dividend policy 
shall proceed in the following: the 
Company considers the capital 
needs of the industry, improves the 
financial structure, as well as the 
business growth. The Company’s 
Board of Directors considers the 
profitability and the business 
requirements, and proposes an 
earnings distribution plan, and 
submits it to shareholders' meeting 
for ratification. In the earning 
distribution plan proposed by the 
board of directors, the total amount 
of shareholders’ dividends should 
be between 30% and 80% of the 
current year’s distributable retained 
earnings, and the dividend paid in 
cash should not be less than 20% of 
the total amount of shareholders’ 
dividends. 

To meet 
future 
operational 
needs. 

Article 
30: 

This Article of Incorporation was 
set up on October 17, 1972. The first 
amendment was on November 20, 
1972; ... (the following amendments 
are omitted); the 42nd amendment 
was made on June 12, 2018; the 
43rd amendment was made on June 
10, 2020; the 44th amendment was 
made on June 13, 2023. 

This Article of Incorporation was 
set up on October 17, 1972. The first 
amendment was on November 20, 
1972; ... (the following amendments 
dates are omitted); the 42nd 
amendment was made on June 12, 
2018; the 43rd amendment was 
made on June 10, 2020. 

New 
amendment 
date was 
added. 
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(Appendix 6) Comparison table of the “Procedures for Shareholders’ Meetings” Before and After version. 

Revised Article Current Article Description 

2. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Changes to how the Company convenes its 

shareholders meeting shall be resolved by 

the board of directors, and shall be made no 

later than mailing of the shareholders 

meeting notice. 

The Company shall prepare electronic 

versions of the shareholders meeting notice 

and proxy forms, and the origins of and 

explanatory materials relating to all 

proposals, including proposals for 

ratification, matters for deliberation, or the 

election or dismissal of directors or 

supervisors, and upload them to the Market 

Observation Post System (MOPS) 30 days 

before the date of a regular shareholders 

meeting or before 15 days before the date of 

a special shareholders meeting. The 

Company shall prepare electronic versions 

of the shareholders meeting agenda and 

supplemental meeting materials and upload 

them to the MOPS before 21 days before the 

date of the regular shareholders meeting or 

before 15 days before the date of the special 

shareholders meeting. If, however, the 

Company has the paid-in capital of NT$10 

billion or more as of the last day of the most 

current fiscal year, or total shareholding of 

foreign shareholders and PRC shareholders 

reaches 30% or more as recorded in the 

register of shareholders of the shareholders 

meeting held in the immediately preceding 

year, transmission of these electronic files 

shall be made by 30 days before the regular 

shareholders meeting. In addition, before 15 

days before the date of the shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall also have 

prepared the shareholders meeting agenda 

and supplemental meeting materials and 

made them available for review by 

shareholders at any time. The meeting 

agenda and supplemental materials shall also 

be displayed at the Company and the 

professional shareholder services agent 

designated thereby. 

The Company shall make the meeting 

agenda and supplemental meeting materials 

in the preceding paragraph available to 

shareholders for review in the following 

manner on the date of the shareholders 

meeting: 

2. 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company shall prepare electronic 

versions of the shareholders meeting notice 

and proxy forms, and the origins of and 

explanatory materials relating to all 

proposals, including proposals for 

ratification, matters for deliberation, or the 

election or dismissal of directors or 

supervisors, and upload them to the Market 

Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30 

days before the date of a regular shareholders 

meeting or before 15 days before the date of 

a special shareholders meeting. The 

Company shall prepare electronic versions 

of the shareholders meeting agenda and 

supplemental meeting materials and upload 

them to the MOPS before 21 days before the 

date of the regular shareholders meeting or 

before 15 days before the date of the special 

shareholders meeting. In addition, before 15 

days before the date of the shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall also have 

prepared the shareholders meeting agenda 

and supplemental meeting materials and 

made them available for review by 

shareholders at any time. The meeting 

agenda and supplemental materials shall also 

be displayed at the Company and the 

professional shareholder services agent 

designated thereby as well as being 

distributed on-site at the meeting place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amendments 

on Article 

text. 



 

40 

Revised Article Current Article Description 

1. For physical shareholders meetings, to 

be distributed on-site at the meeting. 

2. For hybrid shareholders meetings, to be 

distributed on-site at the meeting and 

shared on the virtual meeting platform. 

3. For virtual-only shareholders meetings, 

electronic files shall be shared on the 

virtual meeting platform. 

The reasons for convening a shareholders 

meeting shall be specified in the meeting 

notice and public announcement. With the 

consent of the addressee, the meeting notice 

may be given in electronic form. 

(The following paragraphs omitted.) 

 

 

 

 

 

The reasons for convening a shareholders 

meeting shall be specified in the meeting 

notice and public announcement. With the 

consent of the addressee, the meeting notice 

may be given in electronic form. 

(The following paragraphs omitted.) 

3. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

If, after a proxy form is delivered to the 

Company, a shareholder wishes to attend the 

shareholders meeting online, a written notice 

of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to 

the Company two business days before the 

meeting date. If the cancellation notice is 

submitted after that time, votes cast at the 

meeting by the proxy shall prevail. 

3. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Article 

paragraphs 

added. 

4. 

Paragraph omitted. 

The restrictions on the place of the meeting 

shall not apply when the Company convenes 

a virtual-only shareholders meeting. 

4. 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

Article 

paragraphs 

added. 

5. 

The Company shall specify in its 

shareholders meeting notices the time during 

which shareholder attendance registrations 

for shareholders, solicitors and proxies 

(collectively “shareholders”) will be 

accepted, the place to register for attendance, 

and other matters for attention. 

The time during which shareholder 

attendance registrations will be accepted, as 

stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be at 

least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting 

commences. The place at which attendance 

registrations are accepted shall be clearly 

marked and a sufficient number of suitable 

personnel assigned to handle the 

registrations. For virtual shareholders 

meetings, shareholders may begin to register 

on the virtual meeting platform 30 minutes 

before the meeting starts. Shareholders 

completing registration will be deemed as 

attend the shareholders meeting in person. 

5. 

The Company shall specify in its 

shareholders meeting notices the time during 

which shareholder attendance registrations 

will be accepted, the place to register for 

attendance, and other matters for attention. 

 

 

The time during which shareholder 

attendance registrations will be accepted, as 

stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be at 

least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting 

commences. The place at which attendance 

registrations are accepted shall be clearly 

marked and a sufficient number of suitable 

personnel assigned to handle the 

registrations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Amendments 

on Article 

text. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

Shareholders shall attend shareholders 

meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in 

cards, or other certificates of attendance. The 

Company may not arbitrarily add 

requirements for other documents beyond 

those showing eligibility to attend presented 

by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy 

forms shall also bring identification 

documents for verification. 

 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

When the government or a juristic person is 

a shareholder, it may be represented by more 

than one representative at a shareholders 

meeting. When a juristic person is appointed 

to attend as proxy, it may designate only one 

person to represent it in the meeting. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the 

meeting online shall register with the 

Company two days before the meeting date. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall upload the 

meeting agenda book, annual report and 

other meeting materials to the virtual 

meeting platform at least 30 minutes before 

the meeting starts, and keep this information 

disclosed until the end of the meeting. 

Shareholders and their proxies (collectively, 

"shareholders") shall attend shareholders 

meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in 

cards, or other certificates of attendance. The 

Company may not arbitrarily add 

requirements for other documents beyond 

those showing eligibility to attend presented 

by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy 

forms shall also bring identification 

documents for verification. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

When the government or a juristic person is 

a shareholder, it may be represented by more 

than one representative at a shareholders 

meeting. 

5-1. 

To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, 

the Company shall include the follow 

particulars in the shareholders meeting 

notice: 

1. How shareholders attend the virtual 

meeting and exercise their rights. 

2. Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting 

platform or participation in the virtual 

meeting is obstructed due to natural 

disasters, accidents or other force majeure 

events, at least covering the following 

particulars: 

(1) To what time the meeting is postponed or 

from what time the meeting will resume if 

the above obstruction continues and cannot 

be removed, and the date to which the 

meeting is postponed or on which the 

meeting will resume. 

(2) Shareholders not having registered to 

attend the affected virtual shareholders 

meeting shall not attend the postponed or 

resumed session. 

(3) In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting, 

 New added. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

when the virtual meeting cannot be 

continued, if the total number of shares 

represented at the meeting, after deducting 

those represented by shareholders attending 

the virtual shareholders meeting online, 

meets the minimum legal requirement for a 

shareholder meeting, then the shareholders 

meeting shall continue. The shares 

represented by shareholders attending the 

virtual meeting online shall be counted 

towards the total number of shares 

represented by shareholders present at the 

meeting, and the shareholders attending the 

virtual meeting online shall be deemed 

abstaining from voting on all proposals on 

meeting agenda of that shareholders 

meeting. 

(4) Actions to be taken if the outcome of all 

proposals have been announced and 

extraordinary motion has not been carried 

out. 

3. To convene a virtual-only shareholders 

meeting, appropriate alternative measures 

available to shareholders with difficulties in 

attending a virtual shareholders meeting 

online shall be specified. 

7. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, 

the Company shall keep records of 

shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, 

questions raised, votes cast and results of 

votes counted by the Company, and 

continuously audio and video record, 

without interruption, the proceedings of the 

virtual meeting from beginning to end. 

The information and audio and video 

recording in the preceding paragraph shall be 

properly kept by the Company during the 

entirety of its existence, and copies of the 

audio and video recording shall be provided 

to and kept by the party appointed to handle 

matters of the virtual meeting. 

In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, the 

Company is advised to audio and video 

record the back-end operation interface of 

the virtual meeting platform. 

7. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

Article 

paragraphs 

added. 

8. 

Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be 

calculated based on number of shares. The 

number of shares in attendance shall be 

calculated according to the shares indicated 

8. 

Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be 

calculated based on number of shares. The 

number of shares in attendance shall be 

calculated according to the shares indicated 

Amendments 

on Article 

text. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

by the attendance book and sign-in cards 

handed in, and the shares checked in on the 

virtual meeting platform, plus the number of 

shares whose voting rights are exercised by 

correspondence or electronically. 

Paragraph omitted. 

However, when the attending shareholders 

do not represent a majority of the total 

number of issued shares, the chair may 

announce a postponement, provided that no 

more than two such postponements, for a 

combined total of no more than one hour, 

may be made. If the quorum is not met after 

two postponements and the attending 

shareholders still represent less than one 

third of the total number of issued shares, the 

chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. In 

the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, 

the Company shall also declare the meeting 

adjourned at the virtual meeting platform. 

If the quorum is not met after two 

postponements as referred to in the 

preceding paragraph, but the attending 

shareholders represent one third or more of 

the total number of issued shares, a tentative 

resolution may be adopted pursuant to 

Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company 

Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the 

tentative resolution and another shareholders 

meeting shall be convened within one 

month. In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, shareholders intending to attend the 

meeting online shall re-register to the 

Company in accordance with Article 6. 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the 

attending shareholders represent a majority 

of the total number of issued shares, the chair 

may resubmit the tentative resolution for a 

vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to 

Article 174 of the Company Act. 

by the attendance book and sign-in cards 

handed in plus the number of shares whose 

voting rights are exercised by 

correspondence or electronically. 

 

Paragraph omitted. 

However, when the attending shareholders 

do not represent a majority of the total 

number of issued shares, the chair may 

announce a postponement, provided that no 

more than two such postponements, for a 

combined total of no more than one hour, 

may be made. If the quorum is not met after 

two postponements and the attending 

shareholders still represent less than one 

third of the total number of issued shares, the 

chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

If the quorum is not met after two 

postponements as referred to in the 

preceding paragraph, but the attending 

shareholders represent one third or more of 

the total number of issued shares, a tentative 

resolution may be adopted pursuant to 

Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company 

Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the 

tentative resolution and another shareholders 

meeting shall be convened within one 

month. 

 

 

 

 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the 

attending shareholders represent a majority 

of the total number of issued shares, the chair 

may resubmit the tentative resolution for a 

vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to 

Article 174 of the Company Act. 

10. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

Except with the consent of the chair, a 

shareholder may not speak more than twice 

on the same proposal, and a single speech 

may not exceed 5 minutes. If the 

shareholder’s speech violates the rules or 

exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the 

chair may terminate the speech. 

10. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

11. 

Except with the consent of the chair, a 

shareholder may not speak more than twice 

on the same proposal, and a single speech 

may not exceed 5 minutes. If the 

shareholder's speech violates the rules or 

exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the 

chair may terminate the speech. 

Amendments 

on Article 

text. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

When a juristic person shareholder appoints 

two or more representatives to attend a 

shareholders meeting, only one of the 

representatives so appointed may speak on 

the same proposal. 

After an attending shareholder has spoken, 

the chair may respond in person or direct 

relevant personnel to respond. 

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is 

convened, shareholders attending the virtual 

meeting online may raise questions in 

writing at the virtual meeting platform from 

the chair declaring the meeting open until the 

chair declaring the meeting adjourned. No 

more than two questions for the same 

proposal may be raised. Each question shall 

contain no more than 200 words. The 

regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5 do not apply. 

As long as questions so raised in accordance 

with the preceding paragraph are not in 

violation of the regulations or beyond the 

scope of a proposal, it is advisable the 

questions be disclosed to the public at the 

virtual meeting platform. 

Paragraph omitted. 

12. 

When a juristic person shareholder appoints 

two or more representatives to attend a 

shareholders meeting, only one of the 

representatives so appointed may speak on 

the same proposal. 

 

 

 

13. 

After an attending shareholder has spoken, 

the chair may respond in person or direct 

relevant personnel to respond. 

11. 

(Text omitted) 

14. 

(Text omitted) 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 

12. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

After a shareholder has exercised voting 

rights by correspondence or electronic 

means, in the event the shareholder intends 

to attend the shareholders meeting in person 

or online, a written declaration of intent to 

retract the voting rights already exercised 

under the preceding paragraph shall be made 

known to the Company, by the same means 

by which the voting rights were exercised, 

before two business days before the date of 

the shareholders meeting. If the notice of 

retraction is submitted after that time, the 

voting rights already exercised by 

correspondence or electronic means shall 

prevail. When a shareholder has exercised 

voting rights both by correspondence or 

electronic means and by appointing a proxy 

to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting 

rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting 

shall prevail. 

15. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

After a shareholder has exercised voting 

rights by correspondence or electronic 

means, in the event the shareholder intends 

to attend the shareholders meeting in person, 

a written declaration of intent to retract the 

voting rights already exercised under the 

preceding paragraph shall be made known to 

the Company, by the same means by which 

the voting rights were exercised, before two 

business days before the date of the 

shareholders meeting. If the notice of 

retraction is submitted after that time, the 

voting rights already exercised by 

correspondence or electronic means shall 

prevail. When a shareholder has exercised 

voting rights both by correspondence or 

electronic means and by appointing a proxy 

to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting 

rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting 

shall prevail. 

Article 

paragraphs 

added and 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 



 

45 

Revised Article Current Article Description 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

When the Company convenes a virtual 

shareholders meeting, after the chair 

declares the meeting open, shareholders 

attending the meeting online shall cast votes 

on proposals and elections on the virtual 

meeting platform before the chair announces 

the voting session ends or will be deemed 

abstained from voting. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, votes shall be counted at once after 

the chair announces the voting session ends, 

and results of votes and elections shall be 

announced immediately. 

When the Company convenes a hybrid 

shareholders meeting, if shareholders who 

have registered to attend the meeting online 

in accordance with Article 6 decide to attend 

the physical shareholders meeting in person, 

they shall revoke their registration two days 

before the shareholders meeting in the same 

manner as they registered. If their 

registration is not revoked within the time 

limit, they may only attend the shareholders 

meeting online. 

When shareholders exercise voting rights by 

correspondence or electronic means, unless 

they have withdrawn the declaration of 

intent and attended the shareholders meeting 

online, except for extraordinary motions, 

they will not exercise voting rights on the 

original proposals or make any amendments 

to the original proposals or exercise voting 

rights on amendments to the original 

proposal. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

13. 

The election of directors at a shareholders 

meeting shall be held in accordance with the 

applicable election and appointment rules 

adopted by this Corporation, and the voting 

results shall be announced on-site 

immediately, including the names of those 

elected as directors and the numbers of votes 

with which they were elected, and the names 

of directors not elected and number of votes 

they received. 

 

Paragraph omitted. 

17. 

The election of directors or supervisors at a 

shareholders meeting shall be held in 

accordance with the applicable election and 

appointment rules adopted by this 

Corporation, and the voting results shall be 

announced on-site immediately, including 

the names of those elected as directors and 

supervisors and the numbers of votes with 

which they were elected, and the names of 

directors and supervisors not elected and 

number of votes they received. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Article text 

deleted and 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 

14. 

Paragraph omitted. 

18. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Article 

number 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

Paragraph omitted. 

The meeting minutes shall accurately record 

the year, month, day, and place of the 

meeting, the chair’s full name, the methods 

by which resolutions were adopted, and a 

summary of the deliberations and their 

voting results (including the number of 

voting rights), and disclose the number of 

voting rights won by each candidate in the 

event of an election of directors. The minutes 

shall be retained for the duration of the 

existence of this Corporation. 

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is 

convened, in addition to the particulars to be 

included in the meeting minutes as described 

in the preceding paragraph, the start time and 

end time of the shareholders meeting, how 

the meeting is convened, the chair’s and 

secretary’s name, and actions to be taken in 

the event of disruption to the virtual meeting 

platform or participation in the meeting 

online due to natural disasters, accidents or 

other force majeure events, and how issues 

are dealt with shall also be included in the 

minutes. 

When convening a virtual-only shareholder 

meeting, other than compliance with the 

requirements in the preceding paragraph, the 

Company shall specify in the meeting 

minutes alternative measures available to 

shareholders with difficulties in attending a 

virtual-only shareholders meeting online. 

Paragraph omitted. 

The meeting minutes shall accurately record 

the year, month, day, and place of the 

meeting, the chair’s full name, the methods 

by which resolutions were adopted, and a 

summary of the deliberations and their 

voting results (including the number of 

voting rights), and disclose the number of 

voting rights won by each candidate in the 

event of an election of directors or 

supervisors. The minutes shall be retained 

for the duration of the existence of this 

Corporation. 

adjusted. 

15. 

On the day of a shareholders meeting, the 

Company shall compile in the prescribed 

format a statistical statement of the number 

of shares obtained by solicitors through 

solicitation, the number of shares 

represented by proxies and the number of 

shares represented by shareholders attending 

the meeting by correspondence or electronic 

means, and shall make an express disclosure 

of the same at the place of the shareholders 

meeting. In the event a virtual shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall upload the 

above meeting materials to the virtual 

meeting platform at least 30 minutes before 

the meeting starts, and keep this information 

disclosed until the end of the meeting. 

During the Company’s virtual shareholders 

meeting, when the meeting is called to order, 

the total number of shares represented at the 

meeting shall be disclosed on the virtual 

20. 

The Company shall make expressive 

announcements of the number of shares 

solicited by solicitors or shares represented 

by entrusted proxies on-site at the venue of 

the shareholder’' meeting on the date of the 

shareholders’ meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amendments 

on Article 

text and 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

meeting platform. The same shall apply 

whenever the total number of shares 

represented at the meeting and a new tally of 

votes is released during the meeting. 

Paragraph omitted. 

 

 

 

Paragraph omitted. 

16. 

Staff handling administrative affairs of a 

shareholders meeting shall wear 

identification cards or arm bands. 

The chair may direct the proctors or security 

personnel to help maintain order at the 

meeting place. When proctors or security 

personnel help maintain order at the meeting 

place, they shall wear an identification card 

or armband bearing the word “Proctor.” 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

19. 

 

 

 

The chair may direct the proctors (or 

security personnel) to help maintain order at 

the meeting place. When proctors (or 

security personnel) help maintain order at 

the meeting place, they shall wear an 

identification card or armband bearing the 

word "Proctor." 

Paragraph omitted. 

Paragraph omitted. 

Amendments 

on Article 

text and 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 

17. 

(Text omitted) 

16. 

(Text omitted) 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 

18. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall disclose real-

time results of votes and election 

immediately after the end of the voting 

session on the virtual meeting platform 

according to the regulations, and this 

disclosure shall continue at least 15 minutes 

after the chair has announced the meeting 

adjourned. 

 New added. 

19. 

When the Company convenes a virtual-only 

shareholders meeting, both the chair and 

secretary shall be in the same location, and 

the chair shall declare the address of their 

location when the meeting is called to order. 

 New added. 

20. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, the Company may offer a simple 

connection test to shareholders prior to the 

meeting, and provide relevant real-time 

services before and during the meeting to 

help resolve communication technical 

issues. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders 

meeting, when declaring the meeting open, 

the chair shall also declare, unless under a 

circumstance where a meeting is not 

required to be postponed to or resumed at 

another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 

4 of the Regulations Governing the 

Administration of Shareholder Services of 

 New added. 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

Public Companies, if the virtual meeting 

platform or participation in the virtual 

meeting is obstructed due to natural 

disasters, accidents or other force majeure 

events before the chair has announced the 

meeting adjourned, and the obstruction 

continues for more than 30 minutes, the 

meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on 

another date within five days, in which case 

Article 182 of the Company Act shall not 

apply. 

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as 

described in the preceding paragraph, 

shareholders who have not registered to 

participate in the affected shareholders 

meeting online shall not attend the 

postponed or resumed session. 

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed 

under the second paragraph, the number of 

shares represented by, and voting rights and 

election rights exercised by the shareholders 

who have registered to participate in the 

affected shareholders meeting and have 

successfully signed in the meeting, but do 

not attend the postpone or resumed session, 

at the affected shareholders meeting, shall be 

counted towards the total number of shares, 

number of voting rights and number of 

election rights represented at the postponed 

or resumed session. 

During a postponed or resumed session of a 

shareholders meeting held under the second 

paragraph, no further discussion or 

resolution is required for proposals for which 

votes have been cast and counted and results 

have been announced, or list of elected 

directors and supervisors. 

When the Company convenes a hybrid 

shareholders meeting, and the virtual 

meeting cannot continue as described in 

second paragraph, if the total number of 

shares represented at the meeting, after 

deducting those represented by shareholders 

attending the virtual shareholders meeting 

online, still meets the minimum legal 

requirement for a shareholder meeting, then 

the shareholders meeting shall continue, and 

not postponement or resumption thereof 

under the second paragraph is required. 

Under the circumstances where a meeting 

should continue as in the preceding 

paragraph, the shares represented by 

shareholders attending the virtual meeting 
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Revised Article Current Article Description 

online shall be counted towards the total 

number of shares represented by 

shareholders present at the meeting, 

provided these shareholders shall be deemed 

abstaining from voting on all proposals on 

meeting agenda of that shareholders 

meeting. 

When postponing or resuming a meeting 

according to the second paragraph, the 

Company shall handle the preparatory work 

based on the date of the original shareholders 

meeting in accordance with the requirements 

listed under Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the 

Regulations Governing the Administration 

of Shareholder Services of Public 

Companies. 

For dates or period set forth under Article 12, 

second half, and Article 13, paragraph 3 of 

Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies 

for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of 

Public Companies, and Article 44-5, 

paragraph 2, Article 44-15, and Article 44-

17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations 

Governing the Administration of 

Shareholder Services of Public Companies, 

the Company shall handle the matter based 

on the date of the shareholders meeting that 

is postponed or resumed under the second 

paragraph. 

21. 

When convening a virtual-only shareholders 

meeting, the Company shall provide 

appropriate alternative measures available to 

shareholders with difficulties in attending a 

virtual shareholders meeting online. 

 New added. 

22. 

Matters unspecified in these Rules shall be 

handled pursuant to the Company Act, 

Articles of Incorporation of the Company 

and other relevant laws and regulations. 

21. 

Matters unspecified in these Rules shall be 

handled pursuant to the Company Act, 

Articles of Incorporation of the Company 

and other relevant laws and regulations. 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 

23. 

These Rules shall take effect after having 

been submitted to and approved by a 

shareholders meeting. Subsequent 

amendments thereto shall be effected in the 

same manner. 

22. 

These Rules shall take effect after having 

been submitted to and approved by a 

shareholders meeting. Subsequent 

amendments thereto shall be effected in 

the same manner. 1st Amendment was 

made on 18th of June, 2013. 2nd 

Amendment was made on 11th of June, 

2015. 3rd Amendment was made on 20th 

of July, 2021. 

Article text 

deleted and 

Article 

number 

adjusted. 
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(Appendix 7) The list of candidates 

 

The list of candidates for directors 

serial 

number 
Name 

Education 

ackground 
Experience Present job 

Shareholding / 

Shareholding 

Ratio 

Corporate 

Shareholder 

Name 

1 

Sheng, 

Kuo-

Jung 

Honorary 

Doctorate in 

Management, 

Chaoyang 

University of 

Technology 

Chairman, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Hwa 

Fong Rubber 

Ind. Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Hwa 

Fong Rubber Ind. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

3,824,170 

1.37% 
- 

2 

Lin, 

Yen-

Huey 

Pacific 

Western 

University 

General 

Manager, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Vice Chairman, 

Hota Industrial 

Mfg. Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

3,802,174 

1.36% 
- 

3 
Lin, 

Mei-Yu 

Junior High 

School 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

3,266,000 

1.17% 
- 

4 

Huang, 

Feng-

Yih 

Tainan 

Vocational 

High School 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Ying-

Hui Machine 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Ying-

Hui Machine Co., 

Ltd. 

Director, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

1,968,000 

0.70% 
- 

5 
Chang, 

Yu-Jeng 

Ph.D. Physics, 

University of 

Texas at Austin 

(US) 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, 

Central Motor 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Chin 

Fong Machine 

Industrial Co., 

Ltd. 

11,985,241 

4.29% 

Zhong-Bu 

Investment 

Co., Ltd. 
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Chairman, 

Central Motor 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

6 

Lin, 

Yue-

Hong 

Soochow 

University 

Vice Chairman, 

Central Motor 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Chin 

Fong Machine 

Industrial Co., 

Ltd. 

Vice Chairman, 

Central Motor 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Chin 

Fong Machine 

Industrial Co., 

Ltd. 

11,985,241 

4.29% 

Zhong-Bu 

Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

7 

Sheng, 

Chien-

Chih 

Master, 

Drucker 

Academy (US) 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Manager, Dong 

An Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Director, Kao 

Fong Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

Independent 

Director, Tan De 

Tech Co., Ltd. 

7,066,239 

2.53% 

Kao Fong 

Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 

8 

Sun, 

Yong-

Lu 

Master of 

Management 

and 

Development, 

Feng Chia 

University 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Manager of 

Corporate 

Management, 

Da-Tun Cable 

Television Co., 

Ltd. 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Supervisor, Dali 

Farmers’ 

Association, 

Taichung City 

86,347 

0.03% 

Hao-Qing 

Investment 

9 
Wang, 

Hui-O 

Junior High 

School 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

Responsible 

Person, Ho-Hsin 

Industrial 

Corporation 

Director, Hota 

Industrial Mfg. 

Co., Ltd. 

791,272 

0.28% 
- 
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The list of candidates for  independent directors 

serial 

number 
Name 

Education 

ackground 
Experience Present job 

Shareholding 

/ 

Shareholding 

Ratio 

Corporate 

Shareholder 

Name 

1 

Chueh, 

Ming-

Fu 

Doctor of 

Laws, National 

Chengchi 

University 

Judge, Taiwan High 

Court of Justice 

Judge, Taipei High 

Court of Justice 

Vice Chief, Discipline, 

Executive Yuan 

Presiding Judge, Taipei 

High Administrative 

Court 

Judge, Supreme 

Administrative Court 

Attorney at Law - - 

2 

Cheng, 

Wen-

Zheng 

Master of 

Management 

and 

Development, 

Feng Chia 

University 

Vice President, E-Sun 

Bank 

Independent 

Director, SDI 

CORPORATION 

- - 

3 

Liu, 

Zheng-

Huai 

Doctor of 

Business 

Administration, 

National Taipei 

University 

National Taichung 

University of Science 

and Technology, 

Director of Office of 

General Services, 

Director of Department 

of International 

Business, Director of 

Department of 

Accounting 

Information, 

Development 

Committee Convener of 

Group of Business 

Management, Professor 

of Department of 

Accounting Information 

Independent 

Director, Engley 

Holding (Samoa) 

Ltd. 

Independent 

Director, best 

precision 

industrial Co., 

Ltd. 

- - 

4 

Zhuang, 

Bo-

Nian 

National 

Changhua 

University of 

Education, 

PhD of 

Department of 

Industrial 

Education and 

Technology 

(Master 

Program) 

Consultant and 

Researcher of Board of 

Science and 

Technology, Executive 

Yuan and Director of 

Science and Technology 

Division 

Industrial Technology 

Research Institute 

(“ITRI”), Deputy 

Director of National 

Measurement 

Laboratory R.O.C., 

Manager and Vice CEO 

of ITRI Southern 

Region Campus 

Independent 

Director, APEX 

DYNAMICS, 

INC. 

- - 
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(Appendix 8) Director Candidates lifting restrictions list of non-compete prohibition 

 

Name Concurrent company / Position 

Sheng, Kuo-Jung 

 

Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd./ Honorary Chairman、Director 

Kao Fong (Whaian) Machinery Co., Ltd./ Director 

Howon (Whaian) Automobile Components Company Limited / 

Director 

Howin Precision Company Limited / Director 

Hwa Fong Rubber Ind. Co., Ltd./ Chairman 

Lin, Yen-Hueyc Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd./ Chairman 

Kao Fong (Whaian) Machinery Co., Ltd./ Chairman 

Howon (Whaian) Automobile Components Company Limited / 

Chairman 

Howin Precision Company Limited / Supervisor 

World Known MFG (Cayman) Ltd. / Director 

Chang, Yu-Jeng Central Motor Co., Ltd. / Chairman 

Zhong Yang Technology Co., Ltd./ Chairman 

Calin Technology/ Director 

Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd. / Director 

Chin Fong Machine Industrial Co., Ltd. / Chairman 

Lin, Yue-Hong Central Motor Co., Ltd. / Vice Chairman 

Chin Fong Machine Industrial Co., Ltd. / Director 

Huang, Feng-Yih Ying-Hui Machine Co., Ltd / Director 

Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd. / Director 

Sheng, Chien-Chih Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd. / Director 

World Known MFG (Cayman) Ltd. / Director 

Orange Electronic Co., Ltd./ Independent Director 

Tan De Tech Co., Ltd./ Independent Director 

Sun, Yong-Lu Supervisor, Dali Farmers’ Association, Taichung City 

 


